
 
 
 

 

 
Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 

Housing Panel  
(Panel of the Scrutiny Committee) 
 
 
 

Date: Monday 8 April 2019 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Place: Plowman Room - Oxford Town Hall 

 
For any further information please contact:  

Stefan Robinson, Scrutiny Officer 

Telephone: 01865 252191 

Email: srobinson@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record the meeting please let the 
Contact Officer know how you wish to do this before the start of the meeting. 



 

 

HOW TO OBTAIN A COPY OF THE AGENDA 

 

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we will no 
longer produce paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum internal and 
Council member requirement. Paper copies may be looked at the Town Hall 
Reception and at Customer Services, St Aldate’s and at the Westgate Library 

 

A copy of the agenda may be:- 

- Viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Downloaded from our website 

- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Sent to you in hard copy form upon payment of an annual subscription. 

 

 

 
 

Housing Panel (Panel of the Scrutiny Committee) 
 
Membership 
 
 
Chair Councillor Nadine Bely-Summers  
 
 Geno Humphrey (Housing Panel co-

optee) 
 

 Councillor Lubna Arshad  

 Councillor Richard Howlett  

 Councillor Dick Wolff  

 Councillor Michael Gotch  

 Councillor Sian Taylor  

 Councillor Elizabeth Wade  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

AGENDA 
 

 
 
  Pages 

1   APOLOGIES  

 Substitutes are not allowed. 

 
 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

3   NOTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 5 - 10 

 To note the minutes of the meeting held on 4 March 2019.  

 
 

4   BREACHES IN BUILDING REGULATIONS 11 - 16 

 To consider a report concerning breaches in building regulations, as agreed 
by the Scrutiny Committee in June 2018. This follows the publication of the 
Hackitt Review into the Grenfell Tower fire which made a series of 
recommendations to the sector.  

 

 

5   PROJECT APPROVAL FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A 
HOMELESS SHELTER AND ASSESSMENT HUB AT FLOYD'S 
ROW 

17 - 30 

 To consider a report concerning proposals for a new homeless shelter and 
assessment hub at Floyd’s Row. This is due for consideration by the City 
Executive Board on 10 April. 

 

 

6   HOUSING PANEL WORK PLAN 31 - 32 

 To review the Panel’s Work Plan and make any adjustments and additions as 
necessary.  

 

 

7   DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

 Meetings are scheduled as follows: 
 
27 June 2019 
3 October 2019  
5 December 2019 
 
All meetings begin at 6.00pm. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

DECLARING INTERESTS 
 
General duty 
 
You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item on the 
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you. 
 
What is a disclosable pecuniary interest? 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for expenses 
incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your election expenses); 
contracts; land in the Council’s area; licences for land in the Council’s area; corporate tenancies; 
and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each councillor’s Register of Interests which 
is publicly available on the Council’s website. 
 
Declaring an interest 
 
Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting, you must 
declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature as well as the existence of 
the interest. 
 
If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting you must not 
participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter 
is discussed. 
 
Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception 
 
Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of Conduct 
says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and that “you must not place yourself 
in situations where your honesty and integrity may be questioned”.  What this means is that the 
matter of interests must be viewed within the context of the Code as a whole and regard should 
continue to be paid to the perception of the public. 
 
*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or 
himself but also those of the member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as 
husband or wife or as if they were civil partners. 

 



Minutes of a meeting of the HOUSING PANEL 
(PANEL OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE) on 
Monday 4 March 2019 

Committee members:
Councillor Arshad Councillor Wolff
Councillor Gotch Councillor Bely-Summers (Chair)
Councillor Taylor Councillor Wade

Geno Humphrey (Housing Panel co-optee), Housing Panel co-optee

Officers: 
Rachel Lawrence, Rough Sleeping and Single Homelessness Manager
David Rundle, Private Rented Team Leader
Bill Graves, Landlord Services Manager
Stefan Robinson, Scrutiny Officer
Anita Bradley, Head of Law and Governance 

Also present:
Councillor Linda Smith, Board Member for Leisure and Housing

178.Apologies 
There were no apologies for absence 

179.Declarations of interest 
There were no declarations of interest.

180.Minutes of previous meeting 
The minutes of the meeting held 12 November 2018 were approved, subject to a 
minor typographical change.

181.Housing Panel Work Plan 
The Panel raised a number of issues for consideration as part of the annual 
Scrutiny work planning process. These included:

 Understanding the extent of hidden homelessness, sofa surfing and the number 
of families in houses of multiple occupation. This included understanding the full 
scale of hidden housing need in the City.

 Understanding the benefits of community land trusts, and how they might help 
the council deliver its Local Plan. 

 The Council’s Policy concerning the density of houses of multiple occupation.

5

Agenda Item 3



 Options for supporting a collective forum and voice for private rented sector 
tenants. 

 The outcome of the Tenant Satisfaction Survey for council tenants. 

182.Severe Weather Emergency Protocol: Review of 2018/19 
Councillor Smith, City Executive Board Member for Leisure and Housing, 
explained that the Server Weather Emergency Protocol (SWEP) had to date been 
in effect for a total of 18 nights, seven of which were opened at the discretion of 
council officers. Next winter, a very different model of operation was expected. 
Subject to further work, it was hoped that a new facility would be opened at 
Floyd’s Row over the winter which could provide up to 60 short term emergency 
bed spaces. This was more than the maximum amount of spaces needed on any 
given SWEP night. 

In response to questions, it was clarified that discretion to open SWEP was not 
driven by budgetary demands. In the context of the Council’s homelessness 
budget, SWEP was only a small portion of the overall funding pot but the current 
allocation did not reflect the true cost of providing responsive emergency 
provision. As in previous years, a significant number of those accessing SWEP 
were not known to services. It was possible that these people were not included in 
the official count figures, eg. because they were not found on the night of the 
count, but this was not clear. 

Floyd’s Row was intended to be an engagement and assessment centre, 
designed to link people with the appropriate services. The facility would offer short 
term accommodation for up to 72 hours, whilst service links were made. Longer 
term accommodation would be provided up to 21 days for people whose needs 
had been assessed and with an agreed Housing and Support Plan to help 
facilitate the next stage of their journey, for example, reconnection. It was hoped 
the facility would open in October 2019, subject to funding and planning 
permission. 

The Chair raised the matter of deaths among people who were, or had been, 
recently homeless. It was explained that this matter had been referred to the 
Oxfordshire Safeguarding Adults Board, which was independent of the City 
Council. The Council was awaiting a response for the Board, but if the referral was 
accepted the review was expected to be a lengthy process. 

The Panel noted the broadly positive feedback given by people making use of 
SWEP. This was feedback gathered in response to a recommendation made by 
the Housing Panel on 12 November 2018. The Rough Sleeping and Single 
Homelessness Manager, Rachel Lawrence, explained that attendance at SWEP 
was lower than last year, and the data suggested that colder weather in 2017/18 
was a significant factor in determining higher entry to SWEP.

183.Homelessness Prevention Funds 2019/20 
Linda Smith explained that the overall homelessness prevention budget amounted 
to over £1.7 million, which was a significant portion of the Council’s net budget. 
There were an additional seven bed spaces available in 2019/20 compared to the 

6



previous year, now up to 214. The Council also funded the outreach service 
[OxSPOT], day services and education and training programmes. The report 
presented proposed allocations to services for 2019/20, which were due for 
agreement by the City Executive Board on 13 March 2019. 

In response to questions, it was clarified that people needed to have recourse to 
public funds in order to access most of the accommodation in the Adult Homeless 
Pathway. Some provision had been made – and subsidised - for people without 
recourse to public funds in the short term winter shelters funded by the Rought 
Sleeper Initiative. The Oxford Winter Night Shelter bed spaces were also available 
to people without recourse to public funds. 

The Rough Sleeping and Single Homelessness Manager said that whilst the 
minimum age to enter the Adult Homerless Pathway was 18, the Council would 
usually seek to refer people between 18 and 25 to more appropriate pathways 
managed principally by Oxfordshire County Council. However, the Young 
Person’s Pathway frequently push back on such referrals.

It was further clarified that whilst a budget had been agreed to allow people 
sleeping rough to access Council leisure facilities, the detail of this scheme had 
not yet been finalised. The Panel noted that there was uncertainty over long term 
Central Government funding for homelessness services, and this was of concern. 

The Panel agreed that it should consider a report concerning the Housing First 
Scheme, and how it is and might be used in Oxford in the Future. Further, that a 
report should be considered concerning the support pathway for young people 
experiencing homelessness. It was noted however on officer advice that this 
would principally require input from Oxfordshire County Council officers. The 
Panel indicated that it would also wish to see further proposals for Floyd’s Row at 
the appropriate time. 

The Scrutiny Officer advised that these items would need to be scoped further 
through the annual scrutiny work planning process.

184.Options for a Council Owned Letting Agency 
Councillor Smith explained that the notion of introducing a council-owned lettings 
agency would come at a significant cost, and likely have a limited impact, as set 
out in the officer report. It was a question of priorities. She explained that 30% of 
people in Oxford rent, and only 40% of those use an agency, meaning that the 
market is much smaller than suggested elsewhere. She also explained that the 
Council did a lot of work in inspecting properties and taking enforcement action 
against rogue landlords, to drive up standards. 

Councillor Wolff, who initiated consideration of this report in July 2018, said that 
some lettings agencies were not serving people well, and were in some cases 
working to ensure a high turnover of tenants to increase the amount of fees they 
could generate. This in essence made people feel evicted, and it was affecting 
people across the income spectrum. 

7



Councillor Smith explained that agency fees were being outlawed in June 2019, and 
that much of the concerns expressed by Councillor Wolff would be addressed by 
this. David Rundle, Private Rented Team Leader, explained that this had the 
potential to push some letting agencies into bankruptcy, which already operate in a 
saturated market. One of the principal issues, he explained, was that many tenants 
were unaware of their rights. David offered to circulate a number of existing 
briefings, which are hyperlinked below or electronic access:

 An in depth research paper on the evolving private rented sector 
 The House of Commons briefing search webpage
 Rental statistics on the private rented market 
 The Welsh Code of Practice for agents
 The English Private Landlords Survey 

The Panel agreed that it would wish to review in 2020 what the impact had been on 
the private rented sector of the outlawing of agency fees in June 2019. This would 
be included in the annual scrutiny work plan longlist. The Panel further resolved to 
note that in the current market conditions, it would not be appropriate to pursue the 
establishment of a Council-owned lettings agency. 

185.Quarter 3 Housing Performance Report 
Bill Graves, Landlord Services Manager, explained that rent arrears relating to 
Universal Credit claimants continued to increase with around £250,000 now owed 
by tenants who were not in arrears before claiming Universal Credit. There were 
some significant challenges with the management of Universal Credit rent arrears 
cases and for this reason  more realistic targets on debt recovery would need to 
be set going forward. However, when compared to other local authorities, the 
Council’s position in relation to debt recovery was more favourable than most. The 
long term aim was to help people off of Universal Credit and into paid work. 

Members asked whether there had been a suggestion from Central Government 
of paying landlords housing benefit directly, instead of tenants. Tenants could opt 
to pay their housing benefit or Universal Credit direct to a landlord and landlords 
can also apply for an Alternative Payment Arrangement (UC) where there is a 
certain level of rent arrears.

Concerning the Barton Park development, anecdotal evidence suggested that the 
finish quality of the buildings was high, and there had been no negative comments 
to the officer’s knowledge about build quality to date. 

The total number of affordable homes delivered year to date was 106 and it was 
explained that, should the target of 126 not be met, the remaining 20 should be 
delivered in the next year. The target would be considerably higher in 2019/20 in 
any case. 

The Chair questioned why the number of homelessness cases prevented had not 
been displayed in the report. The officer explained that the Council had changed 
the way it records homeless prevention due to changes in national legislation. 

8

http://www.nationwidefoundation.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/Private-Rented-Sector-report.pdf
https://researchbriefings.parliament.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/private-rental-market-summary-statistics-april-2017-to-march-2018
https://www.rentsmart.gov.wales/en/resource-library/
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/english-private-landlord-survey


This required an extensive manual data entry process, but the new figures should 
be available by the end of March 2019. 

The Panel asked whether there were other performance indicators available. The 
officer advised that many housing related performance indicators exist and the 
current set of indicators was agreed by the panel some time ago. The panel was 
offered the option of looking at a wider range of Key Performance Indicators and 
could choose those it wished to be reported in future. 

186.Date of next meeting 
The Panel noted that its next meetings would be on:

8 April 2019
27 June 2019
3 October 2019

The meeting ended at 7:45PM

9



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 
 
 
To:     Housing Panel 
 
Date:     8th April 2019 
 
Report of:    Head of Regulatory Services and Community Safety 
 
Title of Report:   Building Control Enforcement 
 

Summary and recommendations 

Purpose of report: To inform the panel of the review 
 

Key decision: No 
 

Executive Board Member: Councillor Alex Hollingsworth, Board Member for 
Planning and Transport 
 

Corporate Priority: Efficient and Effective Council 
 

Policy Framework: Corporate Enforcement Policy  

Recommendation:  
 

That the Housing Panel resolves to note the 
outcome of the review 
 

 

Appendices 

None  

 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Building Control function is the process by which the Building Regulations 
2010 as set down by the Department for Communities and Local Government are 
enforced. They are a set of standards as set out by the Building Act 1884 with regard 
to the design and construction of buildings primarily established to ensure the safety 
and access of those people who use the buildings through regulations for fire, 
electrical, structural safety and energy efficiency. 
 
1.2 Historically the Local Authority Building Control (LABC) body performed this 
function exclusively until the partial privatisation of the Building Control sector in 
1985, which created the first Approved Inspector (AI) body, that the NHBC 
introduced resulting in direct commercial competition between public and private 
regulators. The aim of introducing private AI’s was only initially only for residential 
applications but since April 2013 this has progressed to covering all types of building 
work e.g. commercial applications to inject more commercial awareness and 
customer focus within the industry. However, the AI does not possess any 
enforcement powers therefore, the AI must formally revert the application to the 
Local Authority should enforcement action be required.  
 

11

Agenda Item 4



2 
 

1.3 The Building Control Service also performs other statutory enforcement duties 
under Building Act 1984 legislation, designed to protect persons in or around 
buildings from dangerous structures and also regulates demolition processes. 
 
2.0 Enforcement powers  
 
2.1 A Local Authority has a general duty to enforce the Building Regulations within 
its geographical area and there are a number of powers that they can implement to 
secure compliance.  
 
2.2 If it is evidenced a person carrying out building work that contravenes the current 
Building Regulations, the Local Authority may take the necessary enforcement action 
and ultimately prosecute the offender in the Magistrates Court where summary 
conviction to a fine not exceeding Level 5 on the standard scale and to a further fine 
not exceeding £50.00 for each day on which the default continues after conviction.  
(Section 35 and 35A of the Building Act 1984). In addition, prosecution is an 
available action to the Council up to two years after the completion of the offending 
work. This action will usually be taken against the person carrying out the work 
(Builder, installer or main contractor). 
 
2.3 Alternatively, or in addition, the Local Authority may serve an enforcement notice 
on the building owner (The Applicant) requiring alteration or removal of work which 
contravenes the Regulations (Section 36 of the Building Act 1984). If the owner does 
not comply with the notice the Local Authority has the power to undertake the work 
itself and recover the costs of doing so from the owner or applicant. 
 
2.4 A Section 36 enforcement notice cannot be served after the expiration of 12 
months from the date of completion of the building work. A Local Authority also 
cannot take enforcement action under Section 36 if the work which has been carried 
out is in accordance with the full plans application which the authority has approved 
or failed to reject. An appeal against a Section 36 Notice may be made submitted to 
a Magistrates Court under section 102 of the Building Act 1984. 
 
2.5 Where an AI is providing the Building Control service, the responsibility for 
checking that the Building Regulations are complied with during the course of the 
building work will lie with the AI as set out under and in accordance with The Building 
(Approved Inspector etc.) Regulations 2010.  
 
2.6 As AI’s do not possess formal enforcement powers when the inspector considers 
that building work does not comply with the current Building Regulations and there is 
a refusal from the offending party to demonstrate compliance the AI will then cancel 
the Initial Notice which is a legal requirement to submit to the Local Authority as part 
of the commencement process. If no other AI takes on the building control activity, 
the Building Control function will automatically default to the LABC body. From this 
point on, the Local Authority will have enforcement powers set out as above where it 
considers this necessary. 
 
3.0 Rates of enforcement under The Building Act 1984 & Building Regulations 
2010 – The national picture. 
 

12



3 
 

3.1 Research carried out on behalf of the Local Government Association (LGA) in 
2017 evidenced  the number of prosecutions under the Building Act and  Regulations 
has been falling and is now roughly a quarter of the level it was 10 years ago.  
 
3.2 The LGA concluded that the low level of fines and costs awarded by the courts 
meant that prosecution was not considered an effective enforcement option by local 
authorities. This explains why prosecutions taken by Building Control have always 
been rare and generally reserved for exceptional cases, with local authorities, 
including Oxford, pursuing informal routes to secure compliance instead. As a result 
the number of recorded Building Control prosecution cases per year across the UK is 
very low, with approximately 95% of Local Authorities not taking a single 
prosecution. 
 
3.3 The LGA figures for costs from prosecutions by local authorities were: 
 

Average cost to council of prosecution £10,753.29 

Average fine for perpetrator £5,127.83 

Average costs awarded by court £670.60 

Estimated average financial gain of 
perpetrator despite prosecution 

£12,044.44 

 
4.0 Enforcement approach for Building Regulations  
 
4.1 Local Authority Building Control bodies across the UK apply a graduated and 
escalated approach to enforcement action and Oxford City Council is no exception to 
this approach.  
 
4.2 All Building Control work (As opposed to public safety and protection activities) is 
considered to be ‘enforcement’.  For example, When Building Control Surveyors 
issue feedback on full plan approvals and when they provide feedback as part of the 
site inspection regime, it is noted and they expect our direction to be followed.  The 
guidance and subsequent directions are scrutinised checked and closed off as part 
of the next stage review or inspection element.  
 
4.3 The vast majority of interventions by Building Control Surveyors are understood 
and usually well received by the applicant, agent and or building contractor they 
generally get actioned immediately. However, for a minority of works that may 
present a Building Regulations contravention there is an enforcement  ‘escalator’ 
Oxford City Council Building Control will adopt as outlined below:  
 

 Initial intervention 

 Reminder and follow-up action 

 Formal request to remove the contravention 

 Follow-up action to assess the status of the contravention 

 Threat of legal action 

 Preparation of legal action  

 Serving formal papers 

 Court date 

 Court appearance 

13



4 
 

 
4.4 When assessing what enforcement action to take a key factor for consideration is 
public interest. In the case of building work this usually directly involves the home 
owner. For home owners having work done to their own homes, Building Control 
usually prefer the option to enter into informal negotiation in the first instance to 
achieve the required remedial action to achieve the issuing of the Building Control 
completion certificate.  Ultimately the Building Control completion certificate is what 
the home owner needs more than a protracted legal process.  A legal process may 
well result in a successful prosecution but with the contravening building work still 
needing to be rectified. There is also the issue of sub-standard building work, carried 
out by incompetent Builders which the LABC body can action under Regulation 7 – 
Materials and Workmanship of the Building Regulations 2010.   
 
4.5 Building Regulation contraventions are recorded separately from standard 
Building Regulations applications and the indication is that there has been a steady 
decline in the number of contraventions reported to the Council involving the Building 
Control Service.  
 

Year Contraventions 

2018 17 

2017 20 

2016 28 

2015 28 

2014 34 

2013 35 

2012 47 

2011 57 

2010 59 

2009 55 

2008 44 

 
4.6 Rather than pursue formal action for non-compliance the Council usually seeks 
to ensure compliance through a retrospective application for Building Regulations 
approval known as a Regularisation Application.  Therefore, if the building works 
have already commenced or been completed without a valid application being 
submitted to Oxford City Council Building Control there is 50% increase applied to 
the standard application fee as a penalty for non-compliance and the need for 
Building Control Surveyors to undertake retrospective assessments and inspections 
which can be challenging on occasions. Also, there are times when building work is 
unable to be subject to the regularisation process where the building work is of poor 
quality or any building work undertaken prior to the 11th November 1985 cannot 
legally be regularised and will be recorded as a property charge on the Council 
records as unauthorised work.  There are often additional costs for unauthorised 
work required to satisfy Building Regulation requirements such as opening up 
building works so that inspections of key elements can be inspected to demonstrate 
compliance.  
 
4.7 No prosecutions have been taken by Oxford Building Control in the last ten years 
and only one statutory notice has been served, which was in 2018. As such our 

14



5 
 

enforcement approach and rates of activity are very low however, typical of most 
other Local Authorities.  
 
5.0 Future approach 
 
5.1 The Hackitt Review into the Grenfell Tower fire will undoubtedly impact on how 
Building Control powers are utilised in future. The report has centred on the following 
areas where it concluded the Regulatory Systems are not fit for purpose: 
 

 The current Building Regulations and guidance are too complex, unclear and 
open to mis-interpretation. 

 Clarity of roles and responsibilities within the construction sector are poor. 

 There is often no differentiation in competency requirements for those working 
on high-rise and complex buildings. 

 The current compliance, enforcement, and sanctions processes are too weak. 

 The current route for residents to escalate their concerns is unclear and 
inadequate. 

 The system of product testing, marketing, and quality assurance is not clear 
and open for interpretation. 

 
5.2 The Review and Implementation plan has highlighted the following areas that will 
be changed: 
 

 Regulation and Guidance – Are to be more risk-based and proportionate to 
the building work undertaken. 

 Roles and Responsibilities – Clarity on responsibility and accountability is to 
be provided. 

 Competence – Levels of competencies across the sector are to be raised. 

 Process, Compliance, and Enforcement – Stronger enforcement activities are 
to be adopted. 

 Resident’s concerns are to be formally raised. 

 Quality Assurance and Products – Products to be properly tested and certified 
for full compliance and end use. 

 
5.3 Oxford City Building Control is currently planning to respond to these challenges, 
particularly regarding competencies and enforcement processes and additional 
funding has been included in the 2019 Business Plan for the service that is currently 
with Finance for further consideration.  
 
 
Report Authors: 
 
Ian Wright - Head of Regulatory Services and Community Safety - 
iwright@oxford.gov.uk  
 
Paul Smith - Building Control Team Leader - psmith@oxford.gov.uk  
 
. 

15

mailto:iwright@oxford.gov.uk
mailto:psmith@oxford.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

. 

 

 

To: City Executive Board 

Date: 10 April 2019 

Report of: Head of Housing 

Title of Report:  Project Approval for the development of a Homeless 
Shelter and Assessment Hub at Floyds Row 

 

Summary and recommendations 

Purpose of report: To seek Project Approval for the development of a new 
homeless shelter and assessment hub at Floyds Row to 
further develop services focusing on the prevention and 
relief of rough sleeping, including winter shelter provision. 
To request further capital funding from Council; and to 
delegate authority to enter into construction contracts 
accordingly. 

Key decision: Yes  

Executive Board 
Member: 

Councillor Linda Smith, Deputy Leader, Portfolio for 
Leisure and Housing  

Corporate Priority: Meeting Housing Needs, and 

An Efficient and Effective Council 

Policy Framework: Housing and Homelessness Strategy 2018 to 2021 

Recommendation(s):That the City Executive Board resolves to: 

1. Give Project Approval to the proposal to convert this building to deliver the 
initiatives as set out in this report, and within the allocated capital budget for 
this purpose; 

2. Request to Council that subject to the outcome of the forthcoming 
architectural feasibility work being affordable and within the proposed budget 
envelope that a  revised capital scheme now totalling £458k ( an additional 
£274k up from an original £184k ) relating to Option C is included in the 
Council’s 2019/20 capital programme (the funding of which is achievable 
albeit potentially from a variety of sources the ranking of which is still as yet 
to be finalised); 

3. Delegate authority to the Regeneration and Major Projects Service 
Manager, in consultation with the Head of Finance, to enter into contracts for 
the conversion of this building to this purpose, on the basis that in the opinion 
of the Head of Finance this continues to represent best value; 

17

Agenda Item 5



4. Note that the timely delivery of a new winter shelter service for the 2019/20 
winter period is a priority in this project. 

 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 

Appendix 2 

Risk Register  

Equality Impact Assessment 

 

Introduction and background  

1. The number of rough sleepers in Oxford increased by 510% between 2012 and 
2017, with 61 people counted sleeping rough on a given night in November 2017. 
This represents a rate of 10.2 people per 10,000 households – over five times 
higher than the national average of 2 people per 10,000 households.  

2. Whilst the Council’s November 2018 street count showed a reduction in the number 
of people sleeping rough (45), an intelligence-based estimate carried out at the 
same time indicated that a total of 94 people may be sleeping rough in the city on 
any given night.  

3. The Council currently commits £1.8m per year on services to prevent and reduce 
rough sleeping, and the Housing and Homelessness Strategy 2018-21 sets out an 
approach to do more. This is in line with the Government’s new rough sleeping 
strategy which sets out the government’s vision for halving rough sleeping by 2022 
and ending it by 2027 (published Aug 2018, with an action plan and funding 
intentions published in Dec 18). 

4. The plan for a ‘rapid re-housing approach and assessment hub’ forms part of 
Oxford City Council’s comprehensive service development strategy to prevent and 
reduce rough sleeping, drawing on successful examples in other large cities. The 
provision of such a service shouldl result in a step change in our ability to ensure 
that nobody has to sleep rough on the streets of Oxford and also will ensure that we 
meet members’ strong commitment to provide continuous temporary winter shelter 
for rough sleepers over the 19/20 winter period.  

5. The identification of a suitable building to operate such a service in Oxford’s City 
Centre is challenging.  A hub is currently funded using a two-year Government 
grant, but this is daytime only and does not provide emergency accommodation. 

6. A Council-owned building at Floyds Row is considered to provide an ideal location 
for an enhanced offer to rough sleepers, that would not only provide a winter 
shelter, but also a range of other services and short-stay accommodation options 
designed to prevent and relieve rough sleeping.  We anticipate that with specialist 
support being provided, in a safe and secure environment, persons rough sleeping 
in the city can be supported to quickly progress towards sustainable independence.   

7. Such a facility would form part of a wider service provision for persons at risk of 
rough sleeping, through a comprehensive range of services and dedicated 
supported accommodation pathways.   

 

 

18



Proposal 

8. The Housing and Homelessness Strategy 2018-21 and the opportunity of 
assembling an MHCLG funding bid has enabled the Council to develop a proposal 
that aims to: 

 Increase the scope and effectiveness of ‘front-end’ engagement and 
assessment services 

 Provide extra emergency accommodation open to all rough sleepers, including 
those with No Local Connection (NLC) and No Recourse to Public Funds 
(NRPF) every night throughout the winter  

 Develop the range and effectiveness of sustainable Move On routes and options 
for individuals that are eligible for pathway accommodation and those that are 
not 

 Consolidate and improve the efficiency of accommodation and other services, 
including for those with NLC/ NRPF, and vulnerable groups including women 
and persons identifying as LGBTQI 

 

9. The proposal is to use the building at Floyds Row to provide this new facility.   This 
will require rapid mobilisation and the completion of building works in a very short 
time  period. 

10. The proposed services that will be run from Floyds Row are envisaged to be as 
follows: 

1. Daytime Assessment Hub (part of 1 wing - daytime) - 5-20 clients a day 
2. Winter Shelter (1 wing overflowing as necessary) – 20+ clients a night  
3. Somewhere Safe to Stay (1 wing) – 20 clients 
4. Staging Post (1 wing plus other bedrooms if possible) – 20 clients 

  

11. Each service has different characteristics – for example different eligibility 
requirements and facilities.  These will need to be reflected in the physical design of 
each service.  Most of the accommodation will be very temporary, short stay, 
dormitory style bed spaces, ranging from roll-mats for the winter shelter to beds in 
the ‘Staging Post’ service.  An indicative service specification for these services is 
being developed and this will continue to be refined through the co-design and 
commissioning stages of the project, involving various stakeholders and service 
users. 

12. It is envisaged that the service will be commissioned to a third-sector provider, 
ideally an organisation with experience of such facilities and outreach to rough 
sleepers, that are also a registered provider.  Additional agencies are also likely to 
engage with clients in this space, on an individual and group basis.  The Council will 
monitor the contract accordingly, to ensure the Provider delivers the service as 
agreed.  

 

Options 

13. As part of the usual asset management activities of the Council’s commercial 
portfolio, officers have been considering various options for the use of the building 
going forward.  In summary these were: 

19



(1)  Use as a homeless shelter and assessment hub - £180k p.a. rent (over 5 
years) 

(2)  Continue to market the building to let for office use - £180k p.a. rent after initial 
spend 

(3)  Freehold sale - approx. £1.4m valuation 

(4)  Conversion to residential use albeit previous feasibility work suggested that this 
is unviable. 

  
14. Developing the first option, three approaches were set out and costed (capital and 

revenue): 

a) Option A [Phase One]. Only one wing of the building would be developed. 
This would provide a winter shelter for six months per year, for 20 rough 
sleepers, and a daytime assessment hub. 

b) Option B [Phases One and Two]. Two wings of the building would be 
developed, in order to provide the service above, as well as an additional 
residential assessment wing. Both services could be operated year-round, 
providing shelter for 40 clients.  

c) Option C [All three phases]. This is the full development of Floyd’s Row. 
Three wings of the building could be developed and shelter provided for. This 
would include both services outlined in Option B and an additional staging 
post wing, providing shelter for up to 60 clients in total. 

 

15. Significant work has already been undertaken with regard to this project.  A small 
project team has been assembled and various teams have supported initial 
feasibility work to prepare a business case preparation.  This includes: 

 Significant feasibility work of the building itself, including a measured  survey; 
discussions with Building Control; the preparation of high-level costings for 
capital development and refurbishment, with good knowledge of the building and 
of the alterations necessary; a planning application for change of use has been 
submitted; and various specialist surveys undertaken; 

 The Outline Business Case for the project has been approved by the Council’s 
(internal) Development Board with support from various Council teams; 

 The work required from an architect has been specified and tendered.  Work is 
expected in a two stage approach in a very compressed timescale of 8 weeks, 
comprising of feasibility work, consultations and co-design to produce a concept 
design; then following sign-off, to move to developing technical drawings and a 
costed build specification; 

 Direct Services have been sent the draft proposals, plans and timelines as 
advance notice of the request for a quotation, and to help schedule various 
trades in a busy summer period, whilst at the same time delivering to agreed 
budgets and quality; 

 Revenue costings have been undertaken by the rough sleeping and single 
homelessness team, based on costs of running similar services.  The rental 
income assumptions within this have been discussed with Housing Benefit to 
ensure that these will be acceptable.  Full HB subsidy is expected on the current 
proposal (as the anticipated provider is an RP); 

20



 A grant application is being prepared for the second round of the Rapid 
Rehousing Pathway (RRP) funding (£14m nationally).  This bid round closes on 
the 31st March, with an announcement expected “hopefully in Spring”; 

 Conversions have started with the Oxfordshire Community Foundation and City 
Conversion partnership to explore alternative and corporate giving initiatives that 
might support this project; 

 Meetings have taken place with St Mungo’s with a view to agreeing a contract 
variation in the last year of their contract (2019/20) to deliver this service.  The 
service would then need to be retendered going forward; 

 A wider ‘transformation project’ around the adult homeless pathway, joint 
commissioning (countywide) and the inter-relationships of various projects is 
being launched. 

 

16. The next priority for the project is to commission an architect and move into design 
and specification phases, prior to agreeing and commissioning the build contract in 
May 2019.   

 

Financial implications 

17. The headline budget position and the consideration of the 3 options is as set out in 
the following table: 

 

Item 
Y1 

Capital 
spend 

Revenue 

2019-
20 

2020-
21 

2021-
22 

2022-
23 

2023-
24 

Y1* Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5 
 
 

      SUMMARY:  OPTION A (Winter Shelter Only) 

              

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 184 329 284 284 284 284 

TOTAL  FUNDING 184 273 30 30 30 30 

              

NET 0 -56 -254 -254 -254 -254 

The current capital funding (£184k) is fully utilised to deliver the winter shelter for 
six months.  The identified revenue funding from reserves (£153k) is also fully 
deployed in year 1 to ensure operation within the financial envelope.  However, 
there is a £254k revenue deficit from year 2 onwards, making this option 
unsustainable beyond year 2 without a substantial increase in base budget.  The 
option does not provide the best value return from investment. 

  

21



       SUMMARY:  OPTION B (Two wings for Winter Shelter and SStS) 

              

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 276 669 918 822 822 822 

TOTAL  FUNDING 184 669 833 645 645 645 

              

NET -92 0 -85 -177 -177 -177 

This option is the mid-point between Options A and C.  Current capital funding 
(£184k) is fully utilised to deliver as much of two wings of the building as possible 
(a £92k capital shortfall at present).  The identified revenue funding from reserves 
(£153k) is deployed across years 1 and 2, which ensures operation within the 
financial envelope in year 1. There is a £72k revenue deficit in year 2, increasing to 
£177k from year 3 onwards, making this option unsustainable beyond year 2 
without a substantial increase in base budget.  The option does not provide the 
best value return from investment. 

 
 

      SUMMARY:  OPTION C (Full Development - Whole building/ three wings) 

              

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 458 719 1022 959 959 959 

TOTAL  FUNDING 184 719 1022 959 959 959 

              

NET -274 0 0 0 0 0 

All the capital funding expected to be required to complete the project is committed.  
The total building project cost, to open the full service, including professional 
services, fees and contingencies is £549k.  (£458k capital is required, with £91k 
currenly identified as being funded from revenue in year 1, for professional fees).  
£274k is additional capital funding is required to meet the shortfall.  The identified 
revenue funding from reserves (£153k) is fully deployed across all years, to ensure 
operation within the financial envelope.  This option provides the best value return 
from investment, delivering the full service with best use of rental income streams.  
The costs assumed in this model will increase if the committment to invest in full is 
not made prior to end April 2019 (when build contract will be scheduled). 

 

 

18. Option C is the only option that presents a near sustainable business case over the 
MTFP period.  The revenue analysis suggests that the scheme is roughly neutral 
i.e. self-financing given the weekly costs that can be charged and recovered from 
housing benefit, together with the initial anticipated capital shortfall being funded 
from ear marked homelessness  reserves, a future Government funding bid or/ and 
available GF capital receipts. We are submitting a bid for government funding but 
will not know the outcome of this in the time frame required to commit to the 
undertaking the works needed to open the facility by Winter 2019/20. The 
homelessness  reserves could be utilised to underwrite the £300k shortfall to enable 
the project to be launched but if other funding is not secured, use of the reserves for 

22



this project  will mean these reserves will not be available to meet other 
homelessness demands..  

19. Members should note that whilst this proposal seeks to utilise as yet uncommitted 
homelessness reserves, it is nonetheless our main objective that these are in the 
first instance not called upon, and are replaced by Government grant, or if used are 
speedily replaced.  This is due to the scale of the unknowns that could be 
encountered during the MTFP period, namely the potential for the County Council  
to reign back even further on their reducing homelessness commitments, reduced 
Government grant funding; increased service demand (the number of people and 
the complexity of needs); and continued pressure on statutory homelessness 
services (prevention, relief, and main homeless duties/ interim accommodation 
provision) from new Homelessness Reduction Act duties.   

20. We have made these resources available so that in the absence of any alternative 
capital funding the Council does not let this opportunity pass it by and a flagship 
homelessness facility, ideally located and easily accessed, providing the space and 
range of necessary, specialist emergency and longer term services is started in time 
to meet the 2019 winter provision timeline. There are significant risks to this 
decision and the parallel application for Government funding is also necessary to  
replenish the homelessness reserves resources, as is considered prudent and 
necessary to operate a continued effective service offer to homeless households in 
Oxford. 

21. We are also working with the City Conversation Partnership now known as Oxford 
homeless movement to pursue further fundraising initiatives which we hope will 
supplement the services we will be able to offer from Floyds Row. 

22. Over the MTFP period, further work is proposed to fundamentally review spending 
on the wider commissioning of rough sleeping and single homelessness services.  
The intention would be to ensure the most effective service delivery outcomes from 
Council investment, and ensuring best value.  If the (continuous) review of this 
initiative demonstrates that it needs to remain a priority for spend, then the 
expectation, is that current revenue spend on other homelessness commissioned 
services will need to be redirected to support this as a priority going forward. 

Legal issues 

23. The Council has the duty to prevent and relieve homelessness under the 
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017.  The Council also has general powers under 
the Localism Act 2011to provide additional community well-being services. 

 

Level of risk 

24. A Risk Register is provided at Appendix 1.  

 

Equalities impact  

25. An Equalities Impact Assessment is provided at Appendix 2.   There are no 
adverse impacts in undertaking this activity, with the potential to improve provision 
for vulnerable and marginalised households. 

 

23



Conclusion 

26. That the Council should look to use this opportunity to undertake the new 
development of a Homeless Shelter and Assessment Hub at Floyds Row. 

 

 

Report author Dave Scholes 

Job title Housing Strategy and Needs Manager 

Service area or department Housing and Property 

Telephone  01865 252636   

e-mail  dscholes@oxford.gov.uk 

Background Papers:                        None 

 

24



Polly McKinlay PM Project Manager - Senior Commissioning Officer (Rough Sleeping and Single Homelessness)

Dave Scholes DS Project Sponsor - Housing Strategy and Needs Manager

Martin Shaw MS Property Services Manager

Rachel Lawrence RL Rough Sleeping and Single Homelessnes Manager

Title Risk description
Opp/ 

threat
Cause Consequence I P I P I P Control description Due date Status

Progress 

%
Action Owner

Planning permission 

not approved

Planning permission not awarded or 

conditions unacceptable

Threat Objections are raised against the 

application that lead members to vote 

against the proposal

Scheme cannot go ahead/appeal must 

be sought

11.3.19 PM

5 2 2 1 1 1

PM attending planning committee Ongoing Planning permission was granted 

12.3, limited conditions were made 

but these have yet to be 

discharged.
90

PM

Building Control not 

approved

Building Control does not give 

approval to overall design concept

Threat Design concept did not take into account 

building control

Unable to deliver concept and/or need 

to spend money/time reconfiguring

11.3.19 PM

4 2 4 2 3 1

Advance conversations were had with building control. 

Will seek to engage them with architectural 

consultants early. 

Ongoing To progress when architect 

appointed 25

PM

Design stage 

identifies further and 

currently uncosted 

build  requirements

Additional and previously 

unidentified issues being identified 

during the build process that 

require additional works or spend

Threat Build requirements not being thought 

through in draft design

Could increase time or cost 11.3.19 PM/DS

3 3 2 3 2 2

There is a 10% project contingency and a 10% build 

contingency, built into the costings. Feasablity work 

has been undertaken to ensure draft design is based 

on building requirements as far as possible. Process of 

co-design will help further ensure this.

Ongoing Contingencies have now been built 

into budget and feasability work 

undertaken. Planned co-design 

timeable being put together 50

PM/DS

Design stage 

identified further 

planning 

requirements

Design stage identifies further 

works that require further planning 

permission

Threat Original planning application did not 

forsee additional requirements

This could create delays on process & 

further risk of no approvals

11.3.19 PM

2 3 2 2 2 2

We have liased with planning to ensure that the initial 

correct planning application was made and we will be 

clear with the architectural team that external works 

should be avoided where at all possible

Ongoing Original planning application 

approved, further discussion to be 

had with architect when appointed
50

PM

Further building 

control requirements

Building control identifies items 

required not currently costed - e.g. 

fire modifications, additional 

showers and toilets

Threat Draft costings did not take into account 

building regulations

Would increase overall cost 11.3.19 PM/DS

3 3 2 3 2 2

There is a 10% project contingency and a 10% build 

contingency, built into the costings. We have done 

some initial work with building control, and will make it 

a prioirty when the architectural team is appointed. 

We will investigate similar projects to see how they 

navigated requirements.

Ongoing Contingency built in, conversations 

had, and more still to have. Visits 

arranged to similar projects.

50

PM and DS

ODS costs excessive Direct Services are not able to 

achieve (close to) the expected 

costs identified in the QS schedule 

of works from the architect. 

Threat Costs are unrealistically low or ODS 

charge is too high

Would make the project more 

expensive, or create delays if if meant 

we had to go to tender

11.3.19 PM/DS/MS

3 3 3 3 2 2

Architect has been made aware of limited cost 

envelope and overheads have been costed in project. 

Further discussions will be had with ODS about limited 

cost envelope

Ongoing See description

50

PM/DS/MS

Phased approach If project needs to have a phased 

approach in order that winter 

shelter can be delivered earlier than 

other parts of the service (for 

2019/20 winter)

Threat Increased costs of phasing (e.g. erecting 

barriers), risks to clients if building work 

taking place whilst building already being 

occupied. 

If project needs to have a phased 

approach in order that winter shelter 

can be delivered by 1st October

13.3.19 PM/DS/MS

3 4 2 4 2 4

Ensure that phased approach is properly costed and 

that health and safety guidance is followed and given 

to architects/constructors as relevant.

Ongoing Approval to undertake phased 

approach has been sought and so 

project team will actively proceed 

with mitigations. 20% project/build 

contingency included in costing 

should absorb cost of phasing

40

PM/DS/MS

Council governance 

delays

Council governance processes are 

unable to agree to move the project 

forward at exactly the point where 

this is needed 

Threat Council governance processes are slow 

and/or officers not understadning of 

processes and deadlines

Delay in award of and progression with 

build contract

11.3.19 PM/DS

2 3 2 2 1 1

A project timeline will be assembled so that the project 

team are aware of critical points and when submisions 

must be made

Ongoing Key dates are being scheduled in 

and papers being prepared- e.g. the 

April CEB 50

PM

ODS build/supply 

chain delays

Direct Services cannot schedule the 

work to start as expected, nor can 

complete within the proposed 

contract length, or experience 

difficulties mobilising required 

suppliers - e.g. for a new boiler. 

Threat ODS not prepared and/or timeframe 

unrealistic and/or suppliers not mobilisied 

quickly enough

Would create delays on the project and 

delay opening

11.3.19 PM/DS

4 3 3 3 2 3

Advance planning, consideration of a phased approach 

to delivery and internal discussions with ODS to make 

them aware of timeframe and prepare to deliver 

project. Advance planning for supply chain issues - e.g. 

being aware of lead in time required to source new 

boiler. 

Ongoing Initial discussions taken forwards 

with ODS. Phasing still being 

considered

30

DS/MS

Residual

Appendix 1 - Risk Register - Floyds Row - 10th April 2019 CEB

ControlsDate Raised Owner Gross Current

25



QS delays QS requires longer than a week to 

cost the works schedule

Threat Timeline unrealistic or architect does not 

appoint QS with sufficient time and/or 

expertise

Would create delays on the project 11.3.19 PM/DS

2 4 2 3 2 2

The limited timeframe has been made very clear in the 

tender and will further be made clear to the 

architectural team who will be closely managed by the 

client to ensure that appointment of QS is not delayed

Ongoing Further discussions to be had once 

architect appointed

50

PM/DS

ODS tender delays Direct Services require more than a 

week to provide a costed tender

Threat Timeline unrealistic or ODS do not have 

sufficient time and/or expertise

Would create delays on the project 11.3.19 DS/MS

2 3 2 3 2 2

Advance planning and internal discussions to make 

clear to ODS that timeframe is had

Ongoing Further discussions to be had with 

ODS 30

DS/MS

Poor architectural 

quality

Architects firm does not complete 

the work to the required standard

Threat Architects do not have sufficient expertise 

or time. Client does not instruct 

sufficiently

Could mean project of poor quality 11.3.19 PM/DS

4 3 4 2 2 2

A tendering process has been undertaken to ensure 

that a high quality firm is selected, and a draft 

specification written to ensure the brief is clear. They 

will be managaed closely throughout the process by a 

client who has sufficient understanding of project 

requirements.

Ongoing Bids are being evaluated on 13/3 

and 14/3, draft spec has been 

given. Project timeline for first two 

phases is being constructed to 

ensure high client contact
50

PM/DS

Architectural delay Architects firm does not complete 

the work in the required timeframe

Threat Architects do not have sufficient  time. 

Client does not manage sufficiently, or 

timeframe unrealistic

Would create delays on the project 11.3.19 PM/DS

3 3 3 3 2 2

The limited timeframe has been made very clear in the 

tender and will further be made clear when architects 

appointed, with a timetable laid out from the start. The 

client will manage the architects throughout the design 

process, to ensure they stay on track. 

Ongoing To progress further when architect 

appointed. Project timeline for first 

two phases is being constructed to 

ensure that tight timelines are 

stuck to

50

PM/DS

Procurement delay Use of the portal creates delays in 

process

Threat Portal has minimum time requirements Would create delays on the project 11.3.19 PM
2 4 0 0 0 0

Solved - timeline reflects accurate speed of 

procurement whch is not creating delays

Ongoing Solved
100

PM/RL

Project not used by 

clients

Client refusal to use 

project/insufficient engagement

Threat Poor reputation, design creates risks for 

clients

Project cannot reduce rough sleeping 

numbers as hoped

13.3.19 PM/RL

3 3 3 3 2 2

Clients are engaged in deisgn of project, to ensure it 

reflects service user needs.  All rough sleeping data 

indicated high levels of need for this service.  Street 

engagement approaches will be amended to reflect 

this new provision, as will the relationship between 

this service and others in the adult homeless 

pathways/ other pathways.

Ongoing Co-design and consultation being 

built into design process

50

PM/RL

HB income 

insufficient

Insufficient income from housing 

benefit

Threat Rate card is knocked back for being 

excessive. Claims are not made and/or 

clients are not folowed up for payment

Scheme is forced to draw on reserves 

more than intended

13.3.19 PM/RL

4 4 3 2 2 2

Clients will not be asked to pay a direct service charge 

in the 72h SStS service. The service specification will 

incude making HB claims as a specific role requirement. 

Voids and bad debt provision have already been 

factored into calculations and HB Service Manager has 

been consulted on scheme and agrees with the 

concept/ HBV eligiblity expectations

Ongoing Further work to be done in 

determining rate card and spec, 

however positive foundations have 

been laid
75

PM/RL

Antisocial/harmful 

behaviour

Clients using project behave in a 

way that has impacts on other 

clients in the project and on the 

surrounding area/city centre

Threat Antisocial behaviour of clients is not 

appropiatley managed by service 

providers, design of building facilitates 

antisocial behaviour

Scheme gets a bad reputation amonst 

rough sleepers and amongst the 

public/neighbours which takes officer 

time to resolve and decreases project 

outcomes, clients are scared to use it 

and continue to sleep rough, major 

incidents happen which gives poor 

reputation and puts people at risk 

13.3.19 PM/RL

3 4 3 3 3 2

Design will seek to include features that help provide a 

safe environment and reduce anti-social behaviour. 

Specification will include an anti-social behaviour 

management plan and stakeholder engagement

Ongoing Architects spec includes concepts 

such as PIE, which will help to 

design a safe environment. ASB 

management plan will be based on 

work already undertaken at Bonn 

Square 50

PM/RL

Demand too 

high/Supply too low

Too many rough sleepers need to 

use the service and it does not have 

capacity, resulting in waiting lists

Threat The number of rough sleepers increases 

more than anticipated or move-through 

the project is insufficient

The project does not have (or is 

perceived not to have) the expected 

impact on reducing numbers of rough 

sleepers, and members and public call 

for additional initiatives which cannot be 

funded.

13.3.19 PM/RL

2 4 2 4 2 3

Demand modelling for service, flexible capacity, 

flexible approach to commissioning of other services as 

required - subject to funding constraints. Tight 

management of adult homeless pathway, of voids etc, 

to ensure maximum throughput

Ongoing Work has started on maximising 

effectiveness of services and adult 

homeless pathway - more to be 

undertaken
30

PM/RL

Demand too 

low/supply too high

There are not enough clients in 

need to fill the capacity of the 

service

Threat Lower numbers of rough sleepers than 

expected. Particularly a risk in later years 

of the project, where we hope demand 

will decrease

Number of clients too low means 

insufficient housing benefit income

13.3.19 PM/RL

3 2 3 2 1 2

Other options for use of the space to be idenfitied so 

that some space can continue to attract income 

without the entire service needing to be 

decommissioned. Staff numbers to be flexible, by some 

posts being awarded on temporary contracts

Ongoing Other options for income 

generation/use of space are still 

being explored
30

PM/RL

26



Capital costs shortfall The funds required to build the 

project cannot be met from income 

sources and so need to be covered 

by housing reserves. 

Threat Unsuccessful bid to MHCLG and failure of 

fundraising attempts

Housing reserves reduce significantly 

and by the end of the current MTFP 

period, the Council would need to assess 

homelessness risks against the size of 

the reserves and potentially make 

financial adjustments to improve the 

position

13.3.19 PM/RL

3 3 3 2 3 1

Bid being submitted to RRP Fund. Advice of RS advisor 

will be sought prior to submitting bid to ensure 

maximum chance of success. External trusts (e.g. OCF) 

pursued for fundraising opportunities.

Ongoing Waiting to hear from OCF. Will be 

making bid fo RRP by end of March

50

PM/RL

Provider (revenue) 

costs increase

A service provider cannot be 

identified to to provide the service 

specified within the cost envelope 

envisaged

Threat Unrealistic demands from service 

provider, poor relationship and/or 

negotiation between client and service 

provider, unrealistic cost estimates from 

client

Service revenue costings increase 

without income to meet them and/or 

reduced service offer must be put in 

place

13.3.19 PM/RL

4 4 3 3 3 2

Advice of initial service provider is being sought, so 

they can provide inut into costings which appear 

realistic and appropiate.  Cost information from 

compariable services have been used, with the staff 

team required and FTEs considered

Ongoing

50

PM/RL

Revenue cost 

shortfalls

The funds required to keep the 

service running cannot be met from 

income

Threat Other services (e.g. SWEP, sit-up) cannot 

be decommisioned as expected. Limited 

income can be sourced using outdoor 

space.

Required service costs cannot be met 

meanging that service offer needs to be 

reduced or increased draw on housing 

reserves

13.3.19 PM/RL

4 4 3 4 2 2

Alternative options to be identified for raising income. 

Only limited assumptions made about services that can 

be decommissioned (e.g. sit-up will continue for all of 

19/20).  Detailed financial modelling has already been 

undertaken through the outline business case and 

project management processes

Ongoing Further options to be explored for 

raising income, especially given 

that it has now been identified that 

the numbre of car parking spaces 

will likely need to be reduced 

according to planning conditions

50

PM/RL/DS

Poor service 

outcomes

The service does not suceed in 

moving people off of the street and 

into sustained positive outcomes

Threat Poor performance by service provider, 

insufficient enablers (e.g. poor sytems, 

limited availability of move-on options, 

staffing issues)

Service attains a poor reputation and 

only has limited success in ensuring that 

nobody has to sleep rough on streets of 

Oxford

13.3.19 PM/RL

3 3 3 3 3 2

Tightly specificed service specification with clear 

monitoring arrangements in place to ensure outcomes 

are achieved. Broader transformation programme of 

work to ensure that enablers are in place - e.g. 

expansion of move on accomodation

Ongoing Further work to do on wider 

transformation programme and on 

specifying and defining service 

outcomes and measurements but 

we have a good base to progress 

from

30

PM/RL

Difficulty in 

mobilising service 

provider

Service Provider does not have staff 

and sufficient logistics in place in 

order to open service by early 

winter.

Threat Service Provider is unable to mobilise 

sufficiently in order to provide service 

specified, and on time, due to poor time 

management and planning, any legal 

difficulties (e.g. TUPE implications), or 

unrealistic demands from the Client

Service cannot be provided on time 13.3.19 PM/RL

4 4 4 3 3 2

Early and consistent consultation with service provider, 

quick resolution by Client to any issues that arise, 

advice sought promptly and as needed, Client to 

provide realistic timeframe and mitigations for delays 

in getting to full staffing capacity

Ongoing Earily discussions have been had 

with service provider who are 

aware of timeframe. Advice being 

sought on legal implications e.g 

TUPE 30

PM/RL

Dissatisfaction from 

other local 

stakeholders 

Other providers may challenge the 

approach of Client not initially 

procuring the service

Threat Initial service provision will not be 

procured - instead, existing contract wll 

be modified

Other providers service performance in 

other projects declines. RS&SH team 

members time is taken up in resolving 

disputes. Potential (though unlikely) 

challenge. 

13.3.19 PM/RL

2 3 2 3 1 2

Maintain good relationships with other service 

providers and give them some input into project. Seek 

legal/procurement advice on liklihood and basis for 

any  challenge.  Seek to tender the new contract from 

year 2 on.

Ongoing Other service providers being made 

aware of approach to be taken and 

being included in discussions about 

other ways they can contribute 40

PM/RL

27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2:  Equality Impact Assessment – Floyds Row - CEB 10th April 2019 
 
1. Which group (s) of people has been identified as being disadvantaged by your proposals? 

What are the equality impacts?  
 

No groups have been identified as being disadvantaged by this proposal.  The initiative 
recommended focuses on better meeting the needs of rough sleepers and vulnerable 
homeless persons through ensuring access to emergency short-stay accommodation and 
new engagement and assessment services. 

 
2. In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your current or proposed new or 

changed policy, strategy, procedure, project or service to minimise or eliminate the adverse 
equality impacts?  
 

Please provide further details of the proposed actions, timetable for making the changes and the person(s) 
responsible for making the changes on the resultant action plan  
 

The service specification for this service is being designed, including the interface between 
this and other services in the adult homeless pathway.  Consideration as to the protected 
characteristics of customers is considered within this process, and action taken to provide the 
most appropriate assistance to customers circumstances and needs.  The new services 
proposed offer access to more clients than previously, including those rough sleeping in 
Oxford but without local connection or recourse to public funds.  The need to ensure the 
safety and security of all persons using the building is key, recognising that the services will 
be assisting highly vulnerable people, many with complex needs, with a key requirement 
being the safety and needs of vulnerable women and persons who may identify as LBGTQI+.  
The design brief also requires effective disabled access provision to be made to all services. 

 
3. Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed changes and if you do not 

plan to consult, please provide the rationale behind that decision.  
 

Please note that you are required to involve disabled people in decisions that impact on them 
 

No groups have been identified as being disadvantaged by this proposal, and it is expected to 
have a positive impact on many vulnerable people as outlined.  As much co-design will be 
incorporated into initial designs as the timescale for rapid delivery will allow, and further 
service user engagement opportunities are to be identified and exploited in later phases of 
this work, and in the operation of the services themselves. 

 
4. Can the adverse impacts you identified during the initial screening be justified without 

making any adjustments to the existing or new policy, strategy, procedure, project or 
service?  
 

Please set out the basis on which you justify making no adjustments 
 

No adverse impacts, relating to protected characteristics, have been identified. 

 
5. You are legally required to monitor and review the proposed changes after implementation 

to check they work as planned and to screen for unexpected equality impacts.  
 

Please provide details of how you will monitor/evaluate or review your proposals and when the review will 
take place 
  

All plans and requirements will be monitored throughout the development period, and through 
regular contract management and monitoring once the new services are commissioned.    
 

Lead officer responsible for signing off the EqIA: Dave Scholes, Housing Strategy & Needs 
Manager.  Date: March 2019 

29



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 HOUSING PANEL WORK PLAN 
 

8 APRIL 2019 - CONFIRMED REPORTS 
 

Agenda item Decision Description CEB Portfolio  Report Contact 

Breaches in Building 
Regulations 

No To consider a report on enforcement action taken 
against breaches in building regulations. 

Planning and 
Transport  

Ian Wright, Head of 
Regulatory Services 
and Community Safety 

Project Approval and 
Delegated Authority 
for Spend for the 
development of a 
Homeless Shelter 
and Assessment Hub 

Yes  To consider a report concerning spend in relation 
to the Floyd’s Row Homelessness Shelter.  

Leisure and 
Housing   

Nerys Patty, Housing 
Strategy and Needs 
Manager  

 
 

27 JUNE 2019 - PROVISIONAL REPORTS 

Agenda item Decision Description CEB Portfolio  Report Contact 

Q4 Housing 
Performance 

No To consider performance against a set of housing 
indicators for the period October - December. 

Housing / Leisure 
and Housing 

Stephen Clarke, Head 
of Housing Services 

 
 
 

3 OCTOBER 2019 - PROVISIONAL REPORTS 
NONE 
 
 

5 DECEMBER 2019 - PROVISIONAL REPORTS 
NONE 
 

31

A
genda Item

 6

http://mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=21448&PlanId=353&RPID=6144424
http://mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=21448&PlanId=353&RPID=6144424
http://mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=21448&PlanId=353&RPID=6144424
http://mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=21448&PlanId=353&RPID=6144424
http://mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=21448&PlanId=353&RPID=6144424
http://mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=21448&PlanId=353&RPID=6144424


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Notes of previous meeting
	4 Breaches in Building Regulations
	5 Project Approval for the development of a Homeless Shelter and Assessment Hub at Floyd's Row
	Appendix 1 - Risk Register
	Appendix 2 - Equalities Impact

	6 Housing Panel Work Plan

